
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

        Phone: 907- 543-2047 

           Fax: 907-543-3781 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

   

  

  

    

  

   

  

 
    Regular City Council Meeting  

Tuesday, August 14, 2018 

                               6:30 P.M. 

    Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



 
  
  
 

 

Agenda posted on August 8, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 
 

 _________________________                                                                                                                               
 Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 

(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing August 28, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 
  

 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
August 14, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 
 
Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 
 
Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net  
 
Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net  
 
Thor Williams 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 
 
Mitchell Forbes  
Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 
 
Brian Henry 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
bhenry@cityofbethel.net 
 
Pete Williams 
City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 
 
Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  
 
Patty Burley 
City Attorney  
 
                             
 
 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III. ROLL CALL  

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA 

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

a) *7-24-2018 Regular City Council Meeting 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Public Hearing Of Ordinance 18-18: Adopting Fees And Charges Related To Admission At 
The Yukon Kuskokwim Fitness Center (City Manager Williams) 

X. NEW BUSINESS  

a) AM 18-57: Direct Administration to negotiate and execute a sales agreement with Schetky 
Bus and Van Sales for the purchase of one ADA- compliant cutaway transit vehicle (City 
Manager Williams) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS 

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

a) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(c)1: Matters, The Immediate Knowledge Of Which 
Would Clearly Have An Adverse Effect Upon The Finances Of The Public Entity- Court 
House Leased Property Contract (City Manager Williams) 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:bhenry@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

Regular Meeting 
July 24, 2018 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on July 24, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 

 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   
 
David E. Trantham Jr.- Does not believe people should sign up to be heard as it can lead 
to misunderstandings. Stated that he did not violate any Bethel Code or rules in the past 
and cited multiple sources. Stated he has the information if anyone wants to know more. 
Reminded everyone that August 14th is VJ day. 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

 
Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda.  

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Mitchell Forbes   

Council Member Leif Albertson Council Member Brian Henry 

  

Members Absent:   

Council Member Thor Williams  

  

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams Assistant City Clerk Kevin Morgan 

City Attorney Patty Burley  

4



2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business Item A 

Moved by: Forbes 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Move New Business Item A to follow Special Order Of Business. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – 6-28-2018 Nuisance Abatement Hearing Osage. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 
Item B –-7-10-2018 Regular City Council Meeting. 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
Nothing to report. No quorum at last meeting. 
 
Port Commission   
Had a meeting on July 16th. Discussed East Addition and FY 19 Budget. 
 
Planning Commission   
No one to report. 
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee   
Meeting cancelled due to no quorum. 
 
Finance Committee   
Nothing Report. No quorum at last meeting. 
 
Public Works Committee   

5



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

A meeting was held. 
 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
Item A – Healthfitness Monthly Report. 

Stacy Reardon, Facility Manager, addressed the Council. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

Item A – Introduction Of Ordinance 18-18: Adopting Fees And Charges Related To 
Admission At The Yukon Kuskokwim Fitness Center. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 18-18. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  Robb   

 
Main Motion: Suspend Rules to hear from the facility manager, Stacy Reardon. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

Item A – Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-16: Amending The Bethel Municipal Code, 

Chapters 2.05.190 And 2.05.200, City Officers Generally, Employment Prohibited And 
Political Activity. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-16. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Henry 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

6



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

Primary 
Amendment: Un-strike 2.05.190 and re-strike “preceding or” 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  Watson   Robb   

 

Item B – Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-17: Amending Section 9.01 Of The Bethel 
Municipal Code, Minor Offenses Adopted. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-17. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item C – Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 18-12(b): Amending The Adopted 
Annual FY 2019 Budget- Public Works Dept.-Leased Property Court Complex- Finance 
Dept.-Administration Dept. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Budget Ordinance 18-12(b). 

Moved by: Henry 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item B – AM 18-55: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A 
Contract With The Top Scoring Proposer For Water Tank Inspection And Cleaning 
Services. 

 
 

7



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

Main Motion: Approve AM 18-55. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item C – AM 18-56: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A 
Contract With The Top Scoring Proposer For Bulk Fuel Services. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-56. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item D – IM 18-12: Presentation Of The City’s Financial Report Through June 30, 
2018 Containing Year-To-Date Expenditures Compared To The Budget And 
Presentation Of The Utility Operator’s Report For June 2018. 

 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Richard Robb – With berry season now happening and silver salmon season 
soon approaching, wishes everyone to have a safe and enjoyable summer. 
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson – Encourages people to run for office. 
 
Council Member Leif Albertson – No Comment 
 
Council Member Mark Springer – Hope weather stays nice and people get a lot of 
berries. Remember to wear your PFD. 
 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes– Echoing Vice-Mayor Watson’s sentiments on running 
for office. Encourages people to take part in their local government. 
 
Council Member Brian Henry– Would like to see Bethel become more involved in the 
region. Not only with non-profit organizations but with other regional governments. 
Being aware of issues that concern our region as well as creating networks, will 
benefit the region and the City as well. 

8



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  July 24, 2018 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Henry 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes   Henry 

Opposed: 0 

 
 
Council adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk   

9



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



PUBLIC NOTICE 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

PUBLIC SAFETY & TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Wednesday, August 1, 2018 –6:30 p.m. 

300 STATE HIGHWAY – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AGENDA 

City of Bethel Police Dept. 
PO Box 809 

Bethel, AK 99559 
Office| 543-3781    Fax| 543-5086 

Members 
 

Eileen Henrikson 

Chair 

 

Jared Karr 

Vice Chair 

 

Brian Henry 

Council Representative 

 

Julene Webber  

 

Mary Weiss 

 

Joan Dewey 

 

Monroe Tyler 

 

Mary Nanuwak 

Alternate  

 

Ex-Officio Members 

 

Burke Waldron 

Chief of Police 

 

William Howell III 

Fire Chief 

 

Jesslyn McGowan 

Recorder 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL   

III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V.     APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF  

     April 4, May 2, June 6, July 5, 2018  

 

VI.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 A. Update on Transportation Planning (City Manager)  

 B. Commissions Acceptance of Resignation and Declaring Seat Vacant per BMC 

 Code 2.52.070 

 C. Commission Guidelines and Standards for Meeting Conduct (Eileen Henrikson) 

 D. Update on Tracking Cellphone calls to 911 (Chief Waldron) 

 E. Markers around Pinky’s Park to Help Solve Problem of Reporting Locations 

 within the Park 

 F. Ordinance for Addresses (Chief Howell) 

 G. Chair's determination of the excusal/unexcused of the absent members from 

  June 7, 2018 (Eileen Henrikson)  

 

VIII.      CHIEFS’ COMMENTS 

Fire Chief  

Chief of Police 

IX. TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR’S REPORT 

X. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE’S COMMENTS 

XI.  COMMISSION MEMBER’S COMMENTS 

XII.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder 
POSTED on July 25, 2018 
POST OFFICE, AC QUICKSTOP, CORINA’S CASE LOT, CITY HALL, & POLICE DEPT. 

Next Public Safety and Transportation Commission Meeting will be September 5th, 2018 

“Deep Sea Port and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim” 

11



 

 

Planning Commission                               City of Bethel, Alaska 
                                           07-12-2018 

  

City of Bethel, Alaska 

Planning Commission 
July 12, 2018 Regular  Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  

A regular meeting of the Planning Commission was held on July 12, 2018 at the 
Bethel City Hall, Council Chambers in Bethel, Alaska. Chair of the Commission Kathy 
Hanson called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM. 

II. ROLL CALL:  

Compromising a quorum of the Commission, the following members were present 
for roll call: Kathy Hanson, Lorin Bradbury, Alex Wasierski, and Scott Campbell. 
Excused Absence: Shadi Rabi 
Unexcused Absence: John Guinn 
Also Present: Betsy Jumper, Planner; Pauline Boratko, Recorder, and Fire Chief, Bill 
Howell.  

  
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD:  No one wished to be heard 

 
IV. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to approve the agenda. 

SECONDED: Scott Campbell 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous  

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

MOVED: Alex Wasierski Motion to approve the June 14, 2018 meeting 
minutes. SECONDED: Lorin Bradbury 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

VI.  NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Address Code with Fire Chief Howell: Chief Howell reviewed the re-written draft of the 

Bethel Municipal Code 17.50 

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to recommend the City Council to support the 
amended address code 17.50. SECONDED: Alex Wasierski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

 
B. Residential small tower structures: Commission members discussed small wind energy 

conversion systems (WECS).  
VII. PLANNER’S REPORT: Betsy Jumper gave her monthly report.  
VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS:                             

 
A. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS:  

12



 

 

Planning Commission                               City of Bethel, Alaska 
                                           07-12-2018 

  

 L. Bradbury- I want Haroldson’s Sub on the agenda.  
 A. Wasierski- no comment. 
 S. Campbell- no comment. 
 K. Hanson- August 9th is our next meeting.  
 T. Williams- no comment. 

B. ADJOURNMENT:       

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 SECONDED: Scott Campbell 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:59 pm 
APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF __________, 2018  
   
 
________________________________   _____________________________ 
ATTEST: Pauline Boratko, Recorder    Kathy Hanson, Chair 

13



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

 Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action: 

Vote: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance 18-18 
Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Ordinance #18-18 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING 
FEES AND CHARGES RELATED TO ADMISSION  
AT THE YUKON KUSKOKWIM FITNESS CENTER 

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel has previously approved the Fees and Rates stated 
below via the annual Operations Plan with Health Fitness; 

WHEREAS, these fees and rates, while approved, are in a separate document and not 
reflected in the City’s Fee & Rate Schedule as are nearly all of the fees 
which the City sets;  

WHEREAS, having the fees and rates in the Fee & Rate schedule not only provides 
more transparency, it also provides a stronger mechanism for an annual 
review;  

WHEREAS, all of the fees identified in this Ordinance are the same as those from the 
most recent Operations Plan except for the Family Rates; 

WHEREAS, the Family Rates has proven difficult not only to sell, but also to manage as 
it is a bargain for extremely large families yet more costly than individual 
passes for the average sized family;  

WHEREAS, after careful review of the Family Rates, a fee structure that better reflects 
a true volume discount has been devised; 

WHEREAS, this fee rate is easier to calculate, provides a more equitable discount for 
every family, regardless of size, and is easier to program into the Point of 
Sale Software;  

BE IT ORDAINED that the City Council of Bethel Alaska, 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is not permanent in nature and shall be 
not be placed within the Bethel Municipal Code. 

Section 2.  Amendment: The Fees and Charges schedule is hereby amended, new 
language is underlined and old language is stricken. 

16



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

      Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action:   

Vote:  
 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-18 
  Page 2 of 3 

YK FITNESS CENTER 
ADMISSION RATES 

Individual 
FEES/CHARGES 

Family 
Fees/Charges 

Daily Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $8 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $5 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Seniors 60+) $3 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $6 N/A 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $11 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $8 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $6 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $9 N/A 
   
Monthly Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $66 $59 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $33 $30 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $28 $25 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $44 $40 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $90 $81 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $55 $50 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $50 $45 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $55 $50 
   
Annual Rate   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $660 $594 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $330 $297 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $275 $248 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $440 $396 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $905 $815 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $530 $477 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $480 $432 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $640 $576 
   
 
Family Rates  

  

Available for families registering 
three (3) or more individuals (up to a 
maximum of 8).   

Monthly rates for 
families are calculated 
at 10% off the regular 
monthly rates. 

Annual membership 
rates for families 
are calculated at 
20% off the regular 
annual rates. 

17



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Introduction Date: July 24, 2018 

      Public Hearing:  August 14 , 2018 
Action:   

Vote:  
 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-18 
  Page 3 of 3 

YK FITNESS CENTER 
ADMISSION RATES 

Individual 
FEES/CHARGES 

Family 
Fees/Charges 

   
Bundle Pass: 10 pass package   
Pool or Fitness (Adult) $72 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Youth) $55 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Senior 60+) $27 N/A 
Pool or Fitness (Military) $54 N/A 
   
Pool and Fitness (Adult) $99 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Youth) $72 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Senior 60+) $54 N/A 
Pool and Fitness (Military) $81 N/A 

 
 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become upon passage. 
 
ENACTED THIS   DAY OF AUGUST 2018, BY A VOTE OF    IN FAVOR 
AND    OPPOSED.  
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Richard Robb, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk  

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

73



AM 18-57

74

kmorgan
Typewritten Text



75



76



77



78



79



80



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81



82



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



CITY OF BETHEL 
Post Office Box 1388  

Bethel, Alaska  99559 

Phone: 907- 543- 2047 

 

 
 

“Deep Sea and Transportation Center of the Kuskokwim” 

TO:  City Manager 

FROM:  Human Resources 

SUBJECT: June Manager Report 

 

DATE:  July 31 2018 

 

Position 
Number 

of 
Vacancies 

(Average) 
Days 

Vacant 

Number of 
New 

Applications  

Number 
Hired 

During 
Period 

Number of 
Vacancies 
Remaining  

Applicants 
Still in 

Department 
Review 
Process  

Assistant 
Finance Director  

1 351 5 0 1 2 

Dispatch 
Supervisor 

1 378 1 0 1 0 

Driver – Hauled 
Utility 

2 N/A 2 0 2 2 

Firefighters/EMT 2 82 3 0 2 3 

Finance Director 1 30 n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Mechanic II 1 1 0 0 1 0 

Admin Asst 
(PW) 1 4 0 0 1 0 

Water Plant 
Oper (new) 1 0 0 0 1 0 

Bus Driver 1 5 0 0 1 0 

Acct Spec II 1 0 0 0 1 0 

Temp Intern 
(Finance) 1 0 0 0 1 0 

 
TOTALS 13  11 0 12 7 

 

CURRENT AUTHORIZED:  114 

CURRENT ASSIGNED:   101 

 

We currently have 11 job positions with a total of 13 openings as follows: 
 

Ass’t Finance Director: Search expanded and increased the salary offered. 

Currently being filled in an acting capacity. 
 

97



  August 2, 2018 

  2 

Bus Driver: Announced internally.  Open to the general public 3 Aug 18 
 

Hauled Utility Drivers: 2 applications received and forwarded to hiring manager 
for review.  

 
Dispatch Supervisor: This position has been open 378 days. No progress. 

 
Dispatcher: One temp hire was selected to perform full-time    

 
Mechanic-II: Vacant as a result of internal promotion selection for V&E 

Foreman. 
 

Admin Asst (DPW) – This position is pending internally.  Announcing to the 
general public 31 July 18. 

 

Water Plant Operator – new position as a result of FY budget approval.  
Announced internally.  Announcing to the general public 3 August 18. 

 
Firefighters: Two firefighter positions remained unfilled. Currently filled with 

two interns. One individual has applied and application provided to the Acting 
Chief. 

 
Pending vacancies/announcements:   

 
**Internal announcements posted 27 July** 

 
Accounting III Spec  hold announcement per City 

Manger 
Bus driver  

Admin Asst  

Mechanic II  
Water Plant Operator  

 
**Temp hire within finance department departed 30 July 18.  

Currently interviewing applicants per partnership with State of Alaska job 
center** 

 

Program Updates 

Healthcare enrollment is completed with changeover successfully 

accomplished on 1 July.   

James P. Harris 
Human Resources Manager 

98



 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
DATE:  August 7, 2018 
 
TO:  Peter Williams, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John Sargent, Grant Manager  
 
SUBJECT: Grant Manager’s Report – August 14, 2018 Bethel City Council Meeting 
 
 
Grant Application – USDA-RD 
The City submitted the application to the USDA-RD water and sewer program to 
request $13,490,000. The USDA-RD office continues to request information from the 
City in their effort to secure Alaska-allocated grant funds before they are pulled back to 
the USDA national office and have to be requisitioned. As soon as the City receives its 
“Letter of Conditions” associated with this project, related expenses can be reimbursed. 
 
Homeland Security Feedback on Grant Not Funded 
The Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management gave the City 
feedback on why the review committee decided not to fund the City’s State Homeland 
Security Program grant request, including the Police Dispatch Communications Tower, a 
new Dispatch Center Console, and Police Department servers for storage of body 
camera images. The Committee felt that these three equipment requests were for daily 
police operations and not to help the City respond to, recover from, or mitigate 
emergencies. The types of equipment requested should be funded by the City through 
its own capital replacement program or Operations and Maintenance budgets. 
Communities should not expect this grant to fund replacement of equipment every 5-7 
years. 
 
Grant Awards Require Audit Completion 
The City must complete its FY 2017 Audit before it is given the grant agreements for 
the CSP program and the Transit Program. However, the Statewide Transit Coordinator 
authorized the City’s purchase of its bus this summer. 
 
Grant Projects 
Sewer Lagoon Dredging 
This project is nearing completion and grant-close-out. I completed and submitted 
grant reports to request that $2,679,587 be transferred into a City account before we 
send check for same to Merrell Bros., LLC, the company that finished dredging and 
baffle installation at the Sewer Lagoon. The City can expect one more bill from Merrell 
for about $134,000 and one bill from CH2M (engineer) for about $25,000. There will be 
sufficient grant funds to cover the cost of lab testing the sludge removed. 
 
Jetty Repair 
The City ordered five new sewer trucks from Kenworth. STG is more than half way done 
with jetty repairs and turnaround improvements. 

99



 2 

 
Pinky’s Park Sports Field 
City Streets and Roads Division deposited sand and topsoil to the field and leveled it. 
The City installed a culvert and is shaping the driveway and parking lot. Bleachers, 
soccer goals, and bike racks have been ordered. 
 
APEI Safety Grant 
The City is eligible to receive $3,000 safety grant from the insurance company. City 
Manager wants to purchase barricades to direct traffic. 
 
Community Action Grant 
The Committee is preparing to receive grant applications from August 24-31, 2018 and 
to evaluate them at their meetings on September 4 and 12.  
 
Request for Bids/Proposals 
Proposals/Bids being written 

 Gravel 
 

City of Bethel 
Grant Summary 
Fiscal Year 2018 

Preparing 
 
 
Sponsor 

 
 
Name 

 
 
Products/Services 

City 
Depts. 
(Partners) 

 
 

Date 

 
 $ Grant 

$ City Match 
USDA-RD Water and 

Sewer grant 

and loan 

6 water trucks; water 

& sewer piped 

construction project in 

The Avenues Area 

Public 

Works 

Ongoing $13,490,000 

 

Submitted in Fiscal Year 2018 Most recent first 

Sponsor Name Products/Services 
City 
Depts. Date 

 $ Grant 
$ Match 

None of late      

Approved in Fiscal Year 2018 Most recent first 

Sponsor Name Products/Services 

City 

Depts. Date  $ Grant 

AK Division of 

Homeland Security 

and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security Grant 

Cyber Security 

Course for IT 

Director 

Police, 

Fire 

1/30/18 $4,350 

0 

AK Dept. of 

Environmental 

Conservation-Div. 

of Water 

Village Safe 

Water Program 

– Planning 

Project 

Prelim. Engineering 

Report and 

Environmental Report 

for Sewer System in 

Bethel Heights 

Public 

Works 

4/20/18 $75,000 

0 

100



 3 

 

Sponsor 

 

Name 

 

Products/Services 

City 

Depts. 

 

Date 

  

$ Grant 

USDA-RD Water and 

Sewer grant 

and loan 

Sewer Lagoon 

Rehabilitation Project 

– Jetty Repair 

Public 

Works 

2017 $3,332,358 

AK Dept. of 

Transportation & 

Public Facilities, 

Transit Division 

Community 

Transit Grant 

Transit System 

Operations 

Public 

Works – 

Transit 

1/19/18 $334,764 

Rasmuson 

Foundation 

Discretionary 

Grant 

YK Fitness Center 

Operations & Mgmt. 

Public 

Works 
12/8/17 $5,000 

0 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Dredging Bethel 

Sewer Lagoon 

Public 

Works 
2/21/18 $2,071,473 

0 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Dredging Bethel 

Sewer Lagoon 

Public 

Works 
7/14/17 $2,230,851 

0 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Dredging Bethel 

Sewer Lagoon 

Public 

Works 

7/14/17 $300,037 

0 

 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Dredging Bethel 

Sewer Lagoon 

Public 

Works 

7/14/17 $2,283,316 

0 

 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Dredging Bethel 

Sewer Lagoon 

Public 

Works 

10/14/17 $500,000 

0 

 

Village Safe Water 

Program, DEC 

Water and 

Wastewater 

Grant Program 

Replace 5 lift station 

electric panels & 

replace lift station 

Public 

Works 

8/15/17 $840,000 

0 

AK Div. of 

Homeland Security 

& Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security Pgm. 

GIS Mapping, 

repeaters, ALERRT 

Training 

Police 

Fire 

Planning 

7/19/17 $103,987 

AK Public Entity 

Insurance 

Safety Grant Safety vests, jackets, 

ear plugs 

Public 

Works 

9/25/17 $3,000 

0 

Closed 

Not Approved in Fiscal Year 2018 Most recent first 

Sponsor Name Products/Services 

City 

Depts. Date  $ Grant 

AK Division of 

Homeland Security 

and Emerg. Mgmt. 

State 

Homeland 

Security Grant 

Fire Responder 

Communications 

Tower, Police 

Dispatch Center 

consoles, servers, 

cybersecurity training 

Police, 

Fire 

1/30/18 $707,473 

  

101



 4 

 

Sponsor 

 

Name 

 

Products/Services 

City 

Depts. 

 

Date 

  

$ Grant 

AK Dept. of 

Environmental 

Conservation-Div. 

of Water 

Village Safe 

Water Program 

– Planning 

Project 

Update Preliminary 

Engineering Report 

and Environmental 

Report for A-B-C 

Water Loops in 

Bethel Heights 

Public 

Works 

4/20/18 $25,000 

State of Alaska Capital Budget 

Request 

Road Around H-

Marker Lake 

Public 

Works 

2/9/18 $2,000,000 

State of Alaska Capital Budget 

Request 

Institutional Corridor 

Water Delivery 

System – Phase 2 

Public 

Works 

2/19/18 $4,500,000 

State of Alaska Capital Budget 

Request 

Water & Sewer 

Trucks 

Public 

Works 

2/19/18 $3,618,098 

State of Alaska Capital Budget 

Request 

Bethel Hgts. A & B 

Loops & New 

Kilbuck Lift Station 

Public 

Works 

2/19/18 $17,504,390 

State of Alaska Capital Budget 

Request 

Bethel Small Boat 

Harbor Bank 

Stabilization 

Port 2/19/18 $2,500,000 

 

102



103



 

                CITY OF BETHEL      William F. Howell III, Fire Chief  
                             Fire Department                                P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559  
                                  Phone: (907)-543-2131 

                  Fax: (907)-543-2702  
                                                                     bhowell@cityofbethel.net 

    
 
 

Celebrating 50 Years of Service 
  
      

 
    

DATE:  July 30, 2018  

            
TO:  Pete Williams, City Manager 
 
FROM: Daron Solesbee, Fire Captain (Acting Fire Chief) 
 
SUBJECT: Management Report, July 2018 
 
 
Current Events 

  

• Governor Bill Walker signed House Bill 176 (GEMT legislation) into law on June 
20th at the Ester Fire Department during a ceremony celebrating this landmark 
legislation.  The Department has been working with our District 38 delegation and 
the Alaska Fire Chiefs Association for the last two sessions on this legislation.   

• Department personnel have inspected and delivered the new ladder truck to 
Hughes Fire Equipment in Tacoma, Washington, where radios and a key vault 
will be installed prior to shipment to Bethel. The ladder truck sustained damage 
during the cross-country drive. Repairs are in the process of being completed. 
We are still on track for the ladder truck to arrive on the last or second to last 
barge. 

• Department administration is working with management to re-write portions of the 
purchasing code. 

Community Planning/Preparedness 

• Captain Solesbee met with DOWL regarding hydrant placement on the 

institutional corridor between the YK Elder’s Home and the new 54-unit housing 

development. The agreed upon hydrant location will ensure better coverage of 

the YK Elder’s Home, 54-unit housing complex, Prematernal Home, and YKCC, 

while improving access for firefighters. 

• The Department is working with structural engineers from the Eaton Corporation 

regarding fire code requirements for the placement of a switchgear enclosure for 

the new hospital. Plans are being reviewed at this time. 

104



 
• ISO was contacted to return to Bethel in August to conduct a water haul 

simulation to test the department’s firefighting capability while using city water 

trucks.  This could potentially reduce fire insurance premium rating in the 

community further than last year’s improvement to a 4/4 from 5/9y.  We are 

working with administration and the public works department to finalize 

preparations. 

• The Department has drafted changes to the address-numbering ordinance.  The 

revised ordinance was submitted to both the Planning and Public Safety 

Commission for review during the June meetings.  The planning commission had 

many comments and suggestions, which were added to the current draft. New 

language was inserted into the draft regarding a mechanism to bill residents to 

retrofit their address placards as specified by the ordinance.   

• Deputy Fire Marshals Rochleau and Lewis, along with members of the Fire 
Department, closed Swanson’s Apartments due to safety concerns following a 
fire and life safety inspection the week of May 9th.  The apartments are still under 
the closure order. 

• The Department’s Medical Standing orders have been submitted to our Medical 

Director(s) for review and approval. 

Training 

• On 07/02/18 at 7:00 p.m. an EMT Meeting was held at the fire station. 

Responders reviewed vehicle equipment inventories and prepared for the 4th of 

July Parade. 

• From 07/11 – 07/13/18 at 11:00 a.m. staff and other City of Bethel employees 

received hands-on-training in the use of dry chemical portable fire extinguishers.  

• On 07/12/18 at 7:00 p.m. a Fire Meeting was held at the fire station. Responders 

reviewed the new Task Force Tips G-Force hand line nozzles and conducted fire 

attack drills (direct/indirect/combination, ground level) with Class-A Foam use at 

the BFD Training Tower. 

• On 07/13/18 at 2:00 p.m. staff received training on the operation and 

maintenance of the department’s Waterous Floto-Pumps.  

• On 07/17/18 at 1:00 p.m. staff received training on the maintenance and 

operation of the department’s Rescue Alive ice and water rescue equipment.  

• On 07/17/18 at 7:00 p.m. an EMT Meeting was held at the fire station. 

Responders reviewed the ZOLL X-Series monitor/defibrillator and common 

cardiac rhythms.  

105



 
• On 07/26/18 at 7:00 p.m. a Fire Meeting was held at the fire station. Responders 

reviewed tool usage and maintenance, and then conducted vertical ventilation 

drills in the Fire Department parking lot.  

• Two Firefighter Interns are in the process of completing the department’s hybrid 

Emergency Trauma Technician program. They will complete their written and 

practical testing this month.   

• FF Monroe and FF Waite are in the process of completing the department’s 

hybrid Firefighter-I and Hazardous Materials Operations course. Once the online 

academic phase is completed, they will move on to the practical skills phase. 

Written and practical skills testing will be scheduled upon completion. 

• The Driver Training program information has been assigned to staff and 

volunteers. Multiple staff and volunteers have completed the online training and 

safety cone course with our ambulances and fire apparatus.  

Responses 

 

• Between 07/01/18 and 07/30/18, the Bethel Fire Department responded to 77 
EMS and 10 Fire incidents. 
 

• During this period, 46 EMS incidents (59.7%) were alcohol-related.  
 

• On 07/02/18 at 8:55 p.m. firefighters responded to the area of Front Street for the 
report of a propane smell. Firefighters found several open empty propane tanks 
closed the valves on tanks. Firefighters cleared scene and returned to quarters. 

 

• On 07/03/18 at 3:57 a.m. medics responded to the Tundra Suites for the report of 
a person with a dislocated shoulder. Patient was assessed and transported to the 
hospital. 

 

• On 07/05/18 at 2:17 a.m. Firefighters responded to the area of East Ave for the 
report of a structure fire. Firefighters observed a structure on fire and 
extinguished the fire. The fire’s cause was arson.  

 

• On 07/14/18 at 4:20 p.m. medics responded to the boat launch at Standard Oil 
Road for the report of two people with injuries. The patients were assessed and 
transported to the hospital. 

 

• On 07/25/18 at 10:51 a.m. medics responded to Owl Street for the report of an 
expected home death. Medics confirmed death and transported the body to the 
YKDRH Morgue. 

 

• On 07/26/18 at 3:30 p.m. firefighters responded to Red Basket for a kitchen fire. 
On arrival fire was out, firefighters made sure the fire was out and searched the 
whole building to make sure. Firefighters then returned to station. 

 

106



 
• On 07/30/18 at 2:20 a.m. medics responded to the area of AC Quickstop for the 

report of a person with a broken arm. Patient was assessed and transported to 
the hospital. 

 
Budget/Financial  

 

• The department was able to complete most FY18 budget objectives, at or under 
budget, despite large modifications by the Finance Department to our Property 
Maintenance, heating fuel, outside vehicle services, and insurance budgets. 

• The department is operating within the FY19 budget.  

Grants  

 
• The Department applied for Assistance to firefighters grant for approximately 

$130,000 for firefighting turnouts and rescue equipment.  This grant has a 5% 
match.  This request was denied. 
 

• The Department received funding through the Volunteer Fire Assistance program 
for $7,500, for three sets of firefighting turnouts.  This grant has a 10% match.  
PO’s are being prepared for this purchase. 

 
• The Department applied for and passed the first round of approval the Phase 18 

Code blue Grant for $45,000 for the remount of Medic-5 to a new chassis.  Funds 
will be confirmed when the State budget passes in August of 2018. 
 

• The Department was awarded $7,500 in Code Blue grant funding for a new 
power stretcher for the new ambulance.  This grant is administered by YKHC’s 
EMS office; BVESA has committed matching funds. 
 

• Final invoices and check requests were submitted for Department of Homeland 
Security and VFA radio grant purchases.  
 

Staffing/recruitment 

• The Department has two vacancies.  We are advertising on a nationwide basis to 
fill the positions.  These positions have been filled temporarily with summer 
interns.   

 
Vehicles & Equipment 
 

• The Code Blue committee has approved $45,000 to remount our 2003 Ford 

ambulance M-5.  

• Engine 3, our 1986 Grumman reserve pumper, is in service. The pump was 
overhauled for its second time since arriving in Bethel, 32 years ago. Engine-3 is 
being restocked with equipment and now has a reverse camera.  This apparatus 
is being outfitted as a water supply pumper and will carry 3000 feet of 5-inch 

107



 
Storz large-diameter hose to extend the reach of our hydrant system and the 
Institutional Corridor. 
 

• Medic Six is still working great!  The crew is really enjoying the reliable new 

vehicle.  We are waiting for arrival of the new power stretcher and seek funding 

for a new set of extrication tools.  

FIRE DEPARTMENT VEHICLE STATUS 

Vehicle Type  Year Status 
Medic 4 Ambulance 1999 (Backup ambulance)In service, Airbags repaired. 
Medic 5 Ambulance 2003 In service.  Frequent no starts/dead batteries.   

(Plan to remount to new Dodge chassis in  2018/2019) 

Medic 6 Ambulance 2017 (Frontline Ambulance) In service. Tires studded.  
Engine 4 Pumper 2013 (Frontline pumper) In service, Seat belt sensor 

silenced but still needing repair by V&E.  Ground and 
marker lights changed to LED to reduce 
maintenance.  DEF tank heater malfunction. LED 
compartment lighting repaired. 

Engine 3 Pumper 1986 (Back up pumper) In service, Repaired pressure 
control valves and electrical system.  Installed B/U 
camera.  In service for emergencies.  Pump rebuilt 
scheduled in June 2018. Pump testing Scheduled. 
(Poor overall condition  needs replacement) 

Truck 1  Ladder 
Truck 

1980 Ladder out of service, Pump barely functional.  
Replacement is enroute.  Will be retired when the 
new ladder truck arrives. 

Tanker 1 Tanker  
(1500 gallon) 

1980 In service, will be retired when the new ladder truck 
arrives.  Mission will be assumed by Engine-3. 

Com 1 Pickup 2014 In service. 

Com 2 Pickup 2004 In service. 

Boat Boat  In service. Batteries charged. Boat parked at North 
side of Small Boat Harbor. BPD given a set of keys. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

108



Memorandum 
Date: July 26, 2018 
To: Pete Williams, City Manager 
From: Bo Foley, IT Director 
Subject: IT Director’s Report 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

July 2018 Current Events 

 Port of Bethel Data Bottleneck:  

In working with United Utilities Inc., we have discovered that our offering the Port of Bethel 

surveillance to the public is drastically affecting network and Internet access for the employees 

of Bethel. Any time a Bethel citizen (or someone not even in Bethel) pulls up the cameras to 

check on the boat harbor, they effectively have to stream from our network and could leave 

that stream open indefinitely if they chose. If enough people did that at the same time, we 

would really begin to notice the degradation in terms of the Internet service we receive.  

 

At a point in July, this degradation was so severe that the entirety of the port of Bethel’s data 

pipe was clogged and they were unable to get at some of their files and access the centralized 

database in Caselle which resides on the main City Hall server.  As a counter measure against 

this, we will be increasing the size of the data pipe between City Hall and the port from 10Mbps 

to 100Mbps (the same amount that City Hall shares with the Police Dept and Public Works) in an 

attempt to relieve the bottleneck. 

 

Though it is a wonderful convenience for anyone in the public to be able to be able to view the 

camera feeds for the port, it would be my recommendation that we cease this service in order 

to restore network stability to our employees who need it for their everyday tasks. In Bethel, we 

simply do not have the bandwidth available yet to easily support this. If that is not an option, I 

would suggest reducing or limiting the amount of cameras that need to be servicing the public 

to no more than one or two units at most.  

 

 Finalized Contract with Arctic IT to Upgrade “Total Care”:  

July saw the contract with Arctic IT that will be upgrading our Total Care service to “Arctic Care 

Advanced” finalized. This change will allow my department more tools and assistance in 

protecting the city against emerging threats. One such threat that has been fairly mainstream 

lately is that of ransomware. Arctic Care Advanced software will be able to detect behaviors that 

resemble ransomware taking place on servers and workstations and be able to stop them in 

their tracks before it becomes a potentially business‐halting problem.  This, among a handful of 

other advantages, will make this a welcome change to my department and hopefully for the 

employees of Bethel as well. The transition should be taking place within the next month or so. 

 

 Allworx Server Backups:  

This month I set out to inquire with GCI (who originally installed and supported our Allworx VoIP 

phone system) on how to create some measure of redundancy for the databases that were built 

for the City of Bethel and Police Dept. As it was, there was no redundancy in place. If either of 

those two systems went down, we would have to pay to have an entirely new database created 

109



Memorandum 
Date: July 26, 2018 
To: Pete Williams, City Manager 
From: Bo Foley, IT Director 
Subject: IT Director’s Report 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

from scratch, which would be many hours worth of labor. This would be on top of the costs of 

purchasing replacement servers.  

 

In looking into this matter, I learned that GCI has passed support of this system to a new outfit 

in Anchorage, Alaska Tech Services. This is a result of corporate restructuring due to GCI having 

been purchased last year. Alaska Tech Services helped me to create initial backups of both 

phone servers and discussed with me options going forward as both our servers are nearing 

end‐of‐life. I’ll need to put together a project for next fiscal year to handle upgrade server 

replacements for both sites. Fortunately, Alaska Tech Services will let us trade in our old servers 

to bring down the costs of the new. 

 

 Business‐As‐Usual:  

Beyond the above‐mentioned items, the month has been fixing or helping with run‐of‐the‐mill 

trouble tickets such as email issues, printing, Caselle access, and login problems. There has been 

some user access changes to account for some terminations and the onboarding for the new 

Finance Director as well. 

 

 

Future Plans 

 YK Fitness Center Server Setup: Parts have started arriving for the server project at the YK 

Fitness center. Once all hardware has shown up, I will begin taking items over to be installed. 

Arctic IT will be assisting me with setting the software side up remotely. We will then try to 

migrate important files to the server and provide orientation for the users at the fitness center 

for the new environment.  

 

 

110



 

PORT OF BETHEL 

Post Office Box 1388 
Bethel, Alaska 99559 
Voice: 907-543-2310 
Fax:    907-543-2311 

   
TO:                Peter Williams, City Manager 

FROM: Allen Wold, Port Director 

SUBJECT:  July 2018 Managers Report  

                         

 Small Boat Harbor 
-Fixing floats. 
-Cleaning up drift along banks. 
-Selling floats spaces from the waiting list. 
-Watered/calcium the road 
-Customers getting their boat out of storage for customers.  
-Received permit from the USACE to widen North side road entrance. 
-Sold 500+ SBH permits.  
-Painting the approaches. 
-Looking into how to lower the approaches to the floats.   

 City Dock/Beach 1 
-Main line barges AML and AK Logistics 3.8 million LBS total. 
-Using the water truck, calcium, grader, and loader for dust control. 
-Filed a Police report because someone ran through our gate bending 15’ out of place. Repaired 
damaged gate. 

 Port Office  
-UUI set up our fiber optic for our office. 

 Admin 
-Monthly Storage billing for customers. 

 -One of our workers passed their CDL Class B CDL. 
 -Spill response training with the Coast Guard.  

 Seawall 
-Fixing Cable Fencing/Welding new posts for cable fencing and bits along the Seawall. 
-Consistent clean up. Landscaping along seawall. 

 East Addition 
-STG 50% done with the project. 

 Misc./Vehicles 
-Safety checks along the seawall. 

 -Safety Meetings. 
 -V&E fixing our trucks. 

 Petro Port 
-Vitus and Crowley have been fueling up to head up river. 

 
            

   

111



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

City of Bethel 

PPoolliiccee  DDeeppaarrttmmeenntt 
              
 

 

July 2018 Monthly Report 

 

 

Personnel: 

 

We currently have two patrol officer and one investigator (WAANT) 

positions open.  The investigator position will be filled when the other 

vacancies are filled.  There are a total of three applicants for the vacancies.  

The background, polygraph and psychological exam are completed on one 

applicant and a job offer has been made.  The other two applications are 

pending backgrounds and exams.   

 

Two dispatchers left service in July.  A temporary hire was put in place full 

time and another dispatcher remains in training.  Three dispatch applicants 

are in the review process to fill the vacancies.  All CSP and CSO positions 

remain fully staffed. 

 

Operations: 

 

There have been 1,244 calls for service the month of July. This is 

approximately 200 more calls that June though it is approximately 650 fewer 

than the same period in 2017.  Though the call volume is down significantly 

from 2017, the calls requiring investigative reports is almost identical, 76 in 

2018 and 77 in 2017.  The number of intoxicated pedestrian calls is 

consistent with June and down from 543 in July, 2017 to 193 this month.  

There was one death investigation were alcohol was involved.   

 

The July 4th holiday was fairly uneventful.  The calls for service were steady 

but unremarkable.  There were multiple felony domestic violence 

investigations, including one strangulation case this month.  There was also 

a stalking investigation that resulted in an arrest.        

 

 

  

112



 

       Bethel Police Department | P.O. Box 809 | 157 Salmonberry Rd. | Bethel, Alaska 99559 

                 Telephone 907-543-3781 | Fax 907-543-5086 | www.cityofbethel.org 

 

 

Animal Control: 

 

There were 52 animal control calls for service for the month including three 

dog bites.  All three dog bites were by unrestrained dogs.   

113



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  
907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

 
Council Meetings and Events 
August 22 
August 28, Regular City Council Meeting  
 
Burial Permits August 1- Current 
0 
 
Passport Applications August 1- Current 
5 

 
Elections 
The City Clerk’s Office is reaching out to a few members in the community who may be qualified to act as 
the Language Translation Lead for the October Election.  
 
All election notices have been submitted to KYUK for translation and announcement. The Office is also 
purchasing the audio rights to the translation so that we can place them on the City’s website for additional 
assistance and reference by those voters who are low English proficient.  
 
The Office has scheduled an election training September 4.  
 
Declaration of Candidacy Packets can be turned into the City Clerk’s Office August 6 – August 20th at 4p.  
 
The City Clerk is offering a brown bag lunch discussion on August 8 and 16 in the Council Chambers. The 
intent of the open to the public event is to provide an explanation of the process to run for City Council and 
answer questions people may have related to the role of City Council.  
 
The Office is putting together a frequently asked questions list related to Local Option which will be sent to 
the Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office for review and then released to the public.  

 
Nuisance Abatement of Osage Property 
On July 12, the City Clerk’s Office mailed the final notice of abatement order to the people with known 
rights to the property. Previous notice was sent with a summary of the order on June 29, Confirmation of 
receipt of this order was received for each individual except for one.  
Notice of the order to abate was also posted on the property July 11.  
The Office has not received communication from anyone on this property. 
 

115

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

117


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session
	Management Report FD July 2018 - CLERK COPY.pdf
	CITY OF BETHEL      William F. Howell III, Fire Chief
	Fire Department                                P.O. Box 1388, Bethel, Alaska 99559
	Phone: (907)-543-2131
	Fax: (907)-543-2702
	bhowell@cityofbethel.net
	Celebrating 50 Years of Service

	Unfinished Business Ordinance 18-18 Supporting1 Health Fitness Operations and Maintenance Agreement YK Fitness Center July, 1 2018 to June 30, 2020 Final Signed Agreement.pdf
	City of Bethel Amended Operations and Maintenance Agreement (6-20-2018)
	City of Bethel Signature Page

	Manager's Report July 2018 HR Managers Report_Redacted.pdf
	Untitled

	Clerks Report.pdf
	City of Bethel, Alaska
	City Clerk’s Office





